
 

Port of Olympia Mission 
Creating economic opportunities and building community for all of Thurston County through responsible resource use. 

 
 

 
Commission Meeting 
Monday, Jan. 22, 2024 

5:30 PM 
 

Percival Plaza - Olympics Room 
626 Columbia Street NW 

Olympia, WA 98501 

The meeting agenda is available on the Port’s website as of Jan. 16, 2024. 
https://www.portolympia.com/commission 

Written public comments may be submitted to commissioncoordinator@portolympia.com by 12:00 p.m. on the  
date of the meeting. All written comments will be compiled and sent to the Commissioners prior to the meeting. 

Verbal public comment is accepted in person at the meeting.  

If you are attending the meeting via Zoom, you may raise your hand during the meeting to give public comment. 
For those listening by phone, press *9 if you wish to raise your hand and provide comment. 

 
 
 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Approval of Agenda 

D. Executive Director Report 

E. Public Comment  

Individual public comments are limited to 3 minutes per person.  Members of the public may comment 
on agenda items and other port business. 
NOTE:  Guidelines for public comment can be found in the Commission Rules in Resolution 2022-09 
Article VI. 

• Comments should be directed to Commission:  Comments should be directed to the Commission as a whole 
and should not include comments about individual Port staff or members of the public. 

• Courtesy:  All speakers (members of the public, Port staff, and Commissioners) shall be courteous in  
language and demeanor and shall confine remarks to those facts that are germane and relevant to the  
question or issue under discussion. 

 

The public may join the meeting from their computer, tablet or smartphone at: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82643754702  

or Telephone:  1 253 215 8782   

Webinar ID:  826 4375 4702 

https://www.portolympia.com/commission
mailto:commissioncoordinator@portolympia.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82643754702


 

Port of Olympia Mission 
Creating economic opportunities and building community for all of Thurston County through responsible resource use. 

F. Consent Calendar 

1. CBC #2 Roof Replacement Final Acceptance:  James Sommer, Capital Assets Program Manager 

2. Port/Tumwater Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) Interlocal Agreement Amendment 3:  Shawn    
Gilbertson, Director of Environmental Planning and Programs 

G. Pending Issues or Business 

1. None 

H. Action Calendar 

1. None 

I. Action/Other Calendar 

1. 2024 Commissioner Committee Assignments:  Camille St. Onge, Director of Strategic Initiatives and 
Commission Affairs 

Public Comment on Action/Other Calendar 

2. Election of Officers:  Camille St. Onge, Director of Strategic Initiatives and Commission Affairs  

Public Comment on Action/Other Calendar 

3. Commission Rules Resolution 2023-08:  Rudy Rudolph, Interim Executive Director 

Public Comment on Action/Other Calendar 

4. Interim Executive Director Performance/Compensation:  Rudy Rudolph, Interim Executive Director 

Public Comment on Action/Other Calendar 

J. Advisory Calendar 

1. Contract Amendment for Chris Rieve:  Shawn Gilbertson, Director of Environmental Planning and 
Programs 

2. Public Comment on Advisory Calendar 

K. Commissioner Reports/Discussion 

L. Other Business 

M. Meeting Announcements 

N. Adjourn 



 

 
 

COVER MEMO 
Briefing Date/Time: Jan. 22, 2024 

Staff Contact/Title: James Sommer, Capital Assets Program Manager, 
360.528.8005, JamesS@portolympia.com)  

Subject:     CBC Building 2 Roof Replacement – Final Acceptance 

Purpose:    ☐  Information Only     ☒   Decision Needed   

 

Overview: 

This is a Consent agenda item before the Commission. Approval requested. 
 
Background:  

In 2019 an Asset Assessment of port-owned buildings and properties was completed.  
The Assessment included facility condition assessments of 41 structures and their 
associated site improvements, structural, building envelope, mechanical and electrical 
systems; and it evaluated 16 properties for civil and electrical site improvements.  
Recommended improvements to these assets were identified and estimated, including 
minor and major repairs, as well as life-cycle/replacement costs, for a ten-year period 
of time, from 2020 to 2030.   

The Asset Assessment included an evaluation of all three buildings at the Lacey 
Commerce Business Center (CBC).  Each building had recommended repairs to their 
roof structures identified for calendar year (CY) 2023, and Buildings 2 and 3 had roof 
replacements programed for 2030. Throughout 2020 and 2021, repairs were made as 
needed, however, in December of 2021 and January of 2022, significant rain and snow 
events caused leaking into tenant spaces in Building 2 & 3.  During this time, Port 
maintenance staff implemented several interim measures to remedy the leaks until 
roof replacements could be performed.  Building 3 roof replacement was completed 
in early 2023 and the building 2 roof replacement project immediately followed.  

Following the bid opening on August 31, 2023, the Commission awarded the CBC 
Building 2 roof replacement project to the lowest responsible bidder, Chehalis Sheet 
Metal, in the amount of $326,310.00, including Washington State Sales Tax (WSST), 
at the September 11, 2023, Commission meeting.   

mailto:JamesS@portolympia.com


 
 

  

Project Timeline:  
• 08/17/23 – Bids solicited 
• 08/31/23 - Bids opened 
• 9/11/23 – Project awarded to Chehalis Sheet Metal 
• 11/1/23 – Construction began 
• 12/4/23 – Final inspection walkthrough completed with engineer of record 
• 12/15/23 – Substantial completion 
• 01/09/24 – City of Lacey permit inspection and approval 

 
There was one change order approved during the term of the project (for additional 
subroof plywood sheeting and lumber) that resulted in an overall increase in total 
project cost. The below table summarizes the project costs. 

Engineer’s Estimate $265,000 - $331,000 (not including WSST) 
Low Bid Award: Chehalis Sheet Metal $298,000 (not including WSST) 
Total Value of Change Order #1 $  18,000 
Total Adjusted Project Cost $316,000 (not including WSST) 
Final Project Cost (WSST @ 9.5%) $346,020.00 

 

Port staff requests the Commission provide “Final Acceptance” of the project at 
tonight’s meeting.  This approval allows the Port to pay the contractor (minus the 
required retainage at 5% of the project cost, not including sales tax), and file a Notice 
of Completion with applicable state agencies who then verify that statutory 
requirements for this public works project have been met (payment of prevailing 
wages, appropriate taxes and fees, etc.).  Upon Port receipt of certification from the 
state agencies, the final retainage amount will be paid by the Port to the Contractor, at 
which point the project will be completed.   

Documents Attached:  

Change Order #1 

Staff Recommendation: 

Authorize “Final Acceptance” of the work performed under contract 2023-1026 – 
CBC Building 2 Roof Replacement and authorize payment in the amount of 
$346,020.00. 





 

COVER MEMO 
Briefing Date/Time: Jan. 22, 2024 

Staff Contact/Title: Shawn Gilbertson, Director of Environmental Planning 
and Programs, 360.528.8061, shawng@portolympia.com  

Subject:   Port/Tumwater Habitat Conservation Plan                                           
Interlocal Agreement Amendment 3 

Purpose:    ☐  Information Only     ☒   Decision Needed   

 
Consent Agenda:  
Approval of this Consent Agenda item will authorize the Executive Director to sign 
the HCP ILA third amendment.
 
Background/Overview:  
The Port of Olympia and the City of Tumwater have been working under an 
Interlocal Agreement to complete the Bush Prairie Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP). 
 
HCPs are required under the Endangered Species Act (ESA) for development and 
other activities that could impact threatened or endangered species. HCPs are 
documents detailing the protection, mitigation, and restrictions necessary to protect 
species of concern from impacts from development or other activities. In Tumwater, 
an HCP is required to protect the habitat and populations of the Mazama Pocket 
Gopher, the Streak-Horned Lark, the Oregon Spotted Frog, and the Oregon Vesper 
Sparrow. 
 
Completion of the HCP and approval by the US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) 
will result in an Incidental Take Permit under the Endangered Species Act. This will 
allow Port business lines and infrastructure projects to proceed per the conditions of 
the HCP. 
 
The Port of Olympia and Tumwater have shared interest in protecting the species of 
concern on and around Port assets in Tumwater. The partnership has jointly sought 
and received funding grants to pay for the development of the HCP by a consultant. 
Good progress has been made and we are jointly seeking more grant funding and 
working with consultants to complete the HCP.  The HCP Interlocal Agreement was 
originally signed in 2016 and amended in 2020 and 2022.  

mailto:shawng@portolympia.com


 
 

 
This amendment will change the duration of the Interlocal Agreement to terminate 90 
days after issuance of the Incidental Take Permit or December 31, 2028, whichever is 
sooner. This amendment also describes the HCP Phase 3 and 4 Grants' cost-sharing 
arrangement. 
 
Documents Attached:  
Original Interlocal Agreement and Amendments 1, 2, and 3 
 
Summary and Financial Impact:  
Grant match obligations of up to $129,500. Past HCP grant matches have been made 
with in-kind work, mainly staff time. This will be the strategy for future HCP grants 
and if additional grant match funding needs arise, the Commission will be consulted 
for approval per Port policy. 
 



CITY OF TUMWATER/PORT OF OLYMPIA 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR 

HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN PREPARATION 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is made and executed this _____ day of _________ 2016, by and 

between the CITY OF TUMWATER, a Washington municipal corporation, located and doing 

business at 555 Israel Road SW, Tumwater, and the PORT OF OLYMPIA, a Washington public port 

district, located and doing business at 606 Columbia Street NW, Olympia, Washington. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on October 3, 2013, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service issued a final rule listing the 

Taylor’s Checkerspot Butterfly as an endangered species and the Streaked Horned Lark as a 

threatened species under the Endangered Species Act (“ESA”) of 1973, 16 U.S.C. §1531 et seq (78 

Fed. Reg. 61452 (Oct. 3, 2013)); and 

WHEREAS, on October 3, 2013, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service issued a final rule designating 

critical habitat for the Taylor’s Checkerspot Butterfly and the Streaked Horned Lark pursuant to the 

ESA (78 Fed. Reg. 61506 (Oct. 3, 2013)); and 

WHEREAS, on April 9, 2014 the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service issued a final rule listing four 

subspecies of the Mazama pocket gopher as threatened under the ESA (79 Fed. Reg. 19760 (Apr. 9, 

2014)); and 

WHEREAS, on April 9, 2014, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service issued a final rule designating 

critical habitat for the Mazama pocket gopher pursuant to the ESA (79 Fed. Reg. 19712 (Apr. 9, 

2014)); and 

WHEREAS, the range of the three above-referenced listed species’ includes Thurston County, and 

critical habitat designations for the Mazama pocket gopher and the Streaked Horned Lark include 

the Port’s Olympia Regional Airport, which is located within the City of Tumwater; and 

WHEREAS, under Section 7 of the ESA, programs or projects with a federal nexus are required to 

consult with the U.S Fish and Wildlife Service to determine effects on listed wildlife species and 

must comply with conservation measures to avoid prohibited “incidental take” of such species; and 

WHEREAS, under Section 10 of the ESA, non-Federal entities risk civil and/or criminal 

enforcement if development activities cause prohibited “incidental take” of listed wildlife species 

without an appropriate permit; and 

WHEREAS, in light of the above-referenced ESA listings and designation of critical habitat 

impacting properties within the Parties’ respective jurisdictions and/or direct ownership, the Parties 

jointly acknowledge the need for a habitat conservation plan (HCP) to provide programmatic 

incidental take coverage under Section 10 of the ESA in order to allow future development on 

impacted properties; and 



WHEREAS, a City HCP that includes the Port-owned properties within the City will more 

effectively protect listed species and also provide for a more certain and streamlined development 

review processes for impacted properties, including Port-owned properties and Port tenants; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 39.34.010 permits local governmental units to make the most efficient use of their 

powers by enabling them to cooperate with other agencies on a basis of mutual advantage; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 39.34.080 authorizes a public agency to contract with another public agency to 

perform any governmental service which each public agency is authorized to perform, provided that 

such contract shall be authorized by the governing body of each Party to the contract; and 

WHEREAS, the City has been awarded a $132,000 Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation 

Fund (Section 6) grant for development of an HCP; and 

WHEREAS, the City has committed to a cash match of $58,000.00 and to in-kind services for 

$30,000.00 associated with this grant; and 

WHEREAS, the Port desires to partner with the City to develop an HCP that provides incidental 

take coverage for Port and City properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Port is a key partner with the City in the preparation of an HCP, as the Olympia 

Regional Airport contains critical habitat for the Olympia subspecies of Mazama pocket gopher and 

the Streaked Horned Lark; and 

WHEREAS, it is beneficial to and consistent with the duties and obligations of the Parties to work 

cooperatively in order to protect listed species and habitat while allowing for continued economic 

growth and development within the City of Tumwater; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Parties to enter into an agreement to set forth the terms, 

conditions, and requirements for cooperative preparation of an HCP under Section 10 of the ESA. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration for the terms, conditions, requirements, and mutual benefits 

contained herein, it is hereby agreed between the Parties as follows: 

Section 1. Agreement. 

A. The City will maintain and fulfill the grant financial commitment for the HCP Phase 1 

completion of $58,000.00 in cash matching funds and $30,000.00 of in-kind matching 

funds; 

B. The Port will be responsible for additional funding not to exceed $58,000, resulting from 

Port participation in the HCP Phase 1 that result from an expanded scope and additional 

process associated with inclusion of Port properties; 

C. The City of Tumwater will seek reimbursement from the Washington Department of Fish 

and Wildlife (“WDFW”) for activities covered under this ILA.  The City of Tumwater will 

then bill the Port of Olympia for the Port’s portion; 

D. The City is responsible for the HCP Phase 1 grant reporting and deliverables directly to 

WDFW and will therefore maintain primary responsibility for project completion for the 

HCP Phase 1; 

E. The Parties agree to apply for HCP Phase 2 grant funds jointly, with the Port working 

with U.S. Fish & Wildlife as lead to prepare the application. The Port and the City will 



jointly ensure all reporting requirements are met and deliverables submitted on time for 

HCP Phase 2; 

F. The Parties agree to split grant funding match obligations for HCP Phase 2 grant funds 

evenly in an amount not to exceed $150,000 per party; 

G. The Parties agree to cooperate in jointly developing and implementing mitigation 

measures identified as part of the HCP process, with specific allocation of mitigation 

costs and obligations to be determined by later agreement of the Parties prior to approval 

of the final HCP; and 

H. It is expected upon approval of the HCP that incidental take permits under the ESA will 

be issued to both Parties. 

Section 2. Duration.  The terms and performance of this Agreement shall commence 

after the approval by the governing body of each Party and following the recording of this Agreement 

with the Thurston County Auditor or posting of this Agreement on each Party’s website as provided 

in RCW 39.34.040.  This Agreement shall terminate upon USFWS approval of the joint HCP and the 

granting of associated incidental take permits to each Party or December 31, 2020, whichever occurs 

sooner. 

Section 3. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part, with or 

without cause prior to the date specified in Section 2 with thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to 

the non-terminating party. 

Section 4. Administration.  Each Party shall be responsible for administering the terms 

of this Agreement.  No disparate legal entity is created because of entering into this Agreement.  No 

joint organization is created.  No common budget is to be established.  No personal or real property is 

to be jointly acquired or held. 

Section 5. Entire Agreement.  The Parties agree that this Agreement is the complete 

expression of the terms hereto and any oral representations or understandings not incorporated 

herein shall constitute material breach of contract and cause for termination.  It is also agreed by the 

Parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement does not 

constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 6.  Severability.  If any term or condition of this Agreement or the application 

thereof to any person(s) or circumstances is found to be invalid, unconstitutional, or otherwise 

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect other terms, 

conditions, or applications, which can be given effect without the invalid term, condition, or 

application; to this end, the terms and conditions of this Agreement are declared severable. 

Section 7. Review of Agreement.  The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be 

reviewed periodically by each Party for appropriateness and currency. 

Section 8. Amendments.  Any addition, deletion, or change to the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement shall be in the form of a written amendment approved by each of the Parties. 

Section 9. Governing Law.  This contract shall be governed in all aspects by the laws 

and statutes of the State of Washington.  The venue of any action hereunder shall be in the Superior 

Court for Thurston County, Washington. 



Section 10. Indemnification.  The Port shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its 

officers, employees, agents, and assigns harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses 

or suits, including all legal costs and attorney fees, arising from or in connection with the 

preparation of an HCP, but only to the extent of the Port’s negligence or comparative fault.  The City 

shall defend, indemnify, and hold the Port, it officers, employees, agents, and assigns harmless from 

any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits, including all legal costs and attorney fees, 

arising from or in connection with the preparation of an HCP, but only to the extent of the City’s 

negligence or comparative fault. 

EXECUTION 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused to be signed by its duly authorized officer or 

representative as of the date set forth below its signature. 

THE PORT OF OLYMPIA    THE CITY OF TUMWATER 

 

______________________________________  ________________________________________ 

E.B. Galligan, Executive Director   Pete Kmet, Mayor 

Date:_________________________________  Date:___________________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________________  __________________________________________ 

Heather Burgess, Port Legal Counsel   Karen Kirkpatrick, Tumwater City Attorney 



FIRST AMENDMENT 

TO 

CITY OF TUMWATER/PORT OF OLYMPIA 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

FOR 

HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN 

PREPARATION 

 

This First Amendment ("Amendment") is dated effective this 

________________ day of ________________________, 2020, and is entered into by and 

between the CITY OF TUMWATER, a Washington municipal corporation ("CITY"), 

and the PORT OF OLYMPIA ("PORT"), a Washington public port district. 

 

A. The CITY and the PORT entered into an Interlocal Agreement dated 

effective 1st day of November 2016, whereby the parties agreed to prepare a Habitat 

Conservation Plan jointly ("Agreement"). 

 

B. Section 8 of the Agreement provided that the Agreement may only be 

amended by written agreement signed by the parties. 

 

C. The CITY and the PORT desire to amend the Agreement to continue 

the activities described in Section 1 of the Agreement by extending the duration of 

the Agreement found in Section 2. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to the following terms and conditions: 

 

1. Duration. 

 

Section 2 of the Agreement shall be amended to extend the term of the 

Agreement until December 31, 2022. 

 

2. FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. 

 

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not modified by this 

Amendment shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

  



DATED the effective date set forth above. 

 

CITY: PORT: 

CITY OF TUMWATER PORT OF OLYMPIA 

555 Israel Road SW 606 Columbia Street NW 

Tumwater, WA  98501 Olympia, WA 98501 

Pete Kmet, Mayor Sam Gibboney, Executive Director 

 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

Date:  ________________________ Date:  ________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

Karen Kirkpatrick Heather Burgess 

Tumwater City Attorney Port Legal Counsel 



 
SECOND AMENDMENT 

TO 
CITY OF TUMWATER/PORT OF OLYMPIA 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
FOR 

HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN 
PREPARATION 

 
This Second Amendment ("Second Amendment") is dated effective this 

________________ day of ________________________, 2021, and is entered into by and 
between the CITY OF TUMWATER, a Washington municipal corporation ("CITY"), 
and the PORT OF OLYMPIA ("PORT"), a Washington public port district. 
 

A. The CITY and the PORT entered into an Interlocal Agreement dated 
effective the 1st day of November 2016, whereby the parties agreed to prepare a 
Habitat Conservation Plan jointly ("Agreement"). 
 

B. The CITY and the PORT entered into the First Amendment to City of 
Tumwater/Port of Olympia Interlocal Agreement for Habitat Conservation Plan 
Preparation dated May 11, 2020 that extended the Agreement until December 31, 
2021 . 
 

C. Section 8 of the Agreement provided that the Agreement may only be 
amended by written agreement signed by the parties. 
 

D. The CITY and the PORT desire to amend the Agreement to continue the 
activities described in Section 1 of the Agreement by extending the duration of the 
Agreement found in Section 2. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. Duration. 
 

Section 2 of the Agreement shall be amended to extend the term of the 
Agreement until December 31, 2023. 
 

2. FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. 
 

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not modified by this 
Amendment shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D8EA75F5-1DDA-4DF9-AE64-3436B47288D7



DATED the effective date set forth above. 

CITY: PORT: 
CITY OF TUMWATER PORT OF OLYMPIA 
555 Israel Road SW 606 Columbia Street NW 
Tumwater, WA  98501 Olympia, WA 98501 
Pete Kmet, Mayor Sam Gibboney, Executive Director 

______________________________ ______________________________ 
Date:  ________________________ Date:  ________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Karen Kirkpatrick 
Tumwater City Attorney 

______________________________ 
VaLiesha Brown
Port Legal Counsel 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D8EA75F5-1DDA-4DF9-AE64-3436B47288D7

1/19/2022



THIRD AMENDMENT 
TO 

CITY OF TUMWATER/PORT OF OLYMPIA 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

FOR 
HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN 

PREPARATION 
 

This Third Amendment ("Third Amendment") is dated effective this 1st day of 
January, 2024, and is entered into by and between the CITY OF TUMWATER, a 
Washington municipal corporation ("CITY"), and the PORT OF OLYMPIA ("PORT"), 
a Washington public port district. 
 

A. The CITY and the PORT entered into an Interlocal Agreement dated 
effective November 1, 2016, whereby the parties agreed to prepare a Habitat 
Conservation Plan jointly ("Agreement"). 
 

B. The CITY and the PORT entered into the First Amendment to City of 
Tumwater/Port of Olympia Interlocal Agreement for Habitat Conservation Plan 
Preparation dated May 11, 2020, that extended the Agreement until December 31, 
2021 (“First Amendment”). 
 

C. The CITY and the PORT entered into the Second Amendment to City of 
Tumwater/Port of Olympia Interlocal Agreement for Habitat Conservation Plan 
Preparation dated November 1, 2021, that extended the Agreement until December 
31, 2023 (“Second Amendment”). 
 

D. Section 8 of the Agreement provided that the Agreement may only be 
amended by written agreement signed by the parties. 
 

E. The CITY and the PORT desire to amend the Agreement to continue the 
activities described in Section 1 of the Agreement, add additional activities, and 
extend the duration of the Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Agreement. 
 

Section 1 of the Agreement shall be amended to add additional responsibilities 
of the parties, as follows: 
 

A. The City will maintain and fulfill the grant financial commitment for 
the HCP Phase 1 completion of $58,000.00 in cash matching funds and 
$30,000.00 of in-kind matching funds; 



 
B. The Port will be responsible for additional funding not to exceed 

$58,000, resulting from Port participation in the HCP Phase 1 that 
result from an expanded scope and additional process associated with 
inclusion of Port properties; 

 
C. The City of Tumwater will seek reimbursement from the Washington 

Department of Fish and Wildlife (“WDFW”) for activities covered under 
this ILA.  The City of Tumwater will then bill the Port of Olympia for 
the Port’s portion; 

 
D. The City is responsible for the HCP Phase 1 grant reporting and 

deliverables directly to WDFW and will therefore maintain primary 
responsibility for project completion for the HCP Phase 1; 

 
E. The Parties agree to apply for HCP Phase 2 grant funds jointly, with the 

Port working with U.S. Fish & Wildlife as lead to prepare the 
application.  The Port and the City will jointly ensure all reporting 
requirements are met and deliverables submitted on time for HCP 
Phase 2; 

 
F. The Parties agree to split grant funding match obligations for HCP 

Phase 2 grant funds evenly in an amount not to exceed $150,000 per 
party; 

 
G. The Parties agree to apply for grant funds for additional HCP phases 

jointly, as required by necessity or practicality.  The City will be 
responsible for grant applications, reporting, and deliverables with 
assistance provided by the Port as required.  Prior to acceptance of 
future phase grants, the Parties agree that grant funding match 
obligations will be split evenly and with an identified not-to-exceed 
dollar amount per Party; 

 
H. The HCP Phase 3 grant obligates the Parties to funding match 

obligations not to exceed $39,500 per party.  Additionally, the HCP 
Phase 4 grant is anticipated to obligate the Parties to funding match 
obligations not to exceed $90,000 per party.  Future phase grants 
meeting the criteria listed in Paragraph G need not be incorporated into 
subsequent formal amendments of this Agreement. 

 
I. The Parties agree to cooperate in jointly developing and implementing 

mitigation measures identified as part of the HCP process, with specific 
allocation of mitigation costs and obligations to be determined by later 
agreement of the Parties prior to approval of the final HCP; and 



 
J. It is expected upon approval of the HCP that incidental take permits 

under the ESA will be issued to both Parties. 
 
2. Duration. 
 

Section 2 of the Agreement shall be amended to extend the term of the 
Agreement, as follows: 
 

The terms and performance of this Agreement shall commence after the 
approval by the governing body of each Party and following the recording of 
this Agreement with the Thurston County Auditor or posting of this 
Agreement on each Party’s website as provided in RCW 39.34.040.  This 
Agreement shall terminate ninety (90) days after issuance of an Incidental 
Take Permit by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, indicative of U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service approval of the HCP, and subsequent City approval of 
revisions to applicable municipal codes regarding development related to an 
Incidental Take Permit or December 31, 2028, whichever occurs sooner. 

 
  



3. FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. 
 

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not modified by this 
Amendment shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

DATED the effective date set forth above. 
 
CITY: PORT: 
CITY OF TUMWATER PORT OF OLYMPIA 
555 Israel Road SW 606 Columbia Street NW 
Tumwater, WA  98501 Olympia, WA 98501 
Debbie Sullivan, Mayor Rudy Rudolph, 
 Interim Executive Director 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Date:  ________________________ Date:  ________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Karen Kirkpatrick Rick Hughes 
Tumwater City Attorney Port General Legal Counsel 



 

   

COVER MEMO 
Briefing Date/Time: Jan. 22, 2024 

Staff Contact/Title: Camille St. Onge, Director of Strategic Initiatives & 
Commission Affairs, 564-669-3100 
camilles@portolympia.com 

Subject:     Annual Commission Meeting Schedule 

Purpose:    ☐  Information Only     ☒   Decision Needed   

 

Background/Overview:  

The Commission has traditionally assigned a commissioner representing the Port at 
various councils and boards.  The attached document shows the assignments from the 
calendar year 2023 and a proposal for the 2024 assignments for the Commission's 
consideration.   

Commissioner Iyall reached out to the Thurston County Chamber of Commerce. The 
CEO David Schaffert shared that representation should be a staff member and can be 
determined after an executive director is hired. Because this is a staff position, the 
committee has been removed from the list. 

 

Documents Attached:  

• 2024 draft Commission committee assignments 
• PowerPoint Presentation 

 

mailto:camilles@portolympia.com


 
2024 Commissioner Assignments 

 

Updated Jan. 2024 

Entity/Group/Board Scheduled Meeting 2023  
Assignments Commissioner 

Experience Olympia and 
Beyond 
 

Monthly 3rd Tuesday 3:30 PM 
Commissioner Evans 

Harding 

Commissioner Tonge 

Commissioner Harding 

Transportation Policy Board 
 

Monthly 2nd Wednesday 7:00 AM 
Commissioner 

Downing Commissioner Vasavada 

Solid Waste Advisory 
Committee 
 

Monthly 1st Wednesday at 10:00 
AM 

Commissioner 
Downing Commissioner Harding 

Tenino Chamber 
 

Monthly 3rd Wednesday 11:30 AM Commissioner Iyall Commissioner Sanders 

Economic Development 
Council 
 

Monthly 4th Wednesday 12:00 PM 
Commissioner 

Downing  Commissioner Vasavada 

Yelm Chamber 
 

Monthly 2nd Tuesday 11:30 AM Commissioner Iyall Commissioner Iyall 

Lacey Chamber 
 

Monthly 1st Wednesday 11:30 AM 
Commissioner 

Downing Commissioner Tonge 

Makers Space 
 

Scheduled As Needed Commissioner Iyall Commissioner Tonge 

Thurston Regional Planning 
Council Monthly 1st Friday 8:30 AM 

Commissioner Evans 
Harding Commissioner Harding 

Capital Lake-Deschutes 
Estuary Executive Work 
Group Scheduled Quarterly 

Commissioner 
Downing 

Commissioner Sanders 

Commissioner Vasavada 

Sea Level Rise Collaborative: 
Executive Committee Scheduled Quarterly Commissioner Iyall 

Commissioner Sanders 

Commissioner Vasavada 

Tumwater Chamber 
 

Monthly 3rd Wednesday at 11:30 
PM 

Commissioner Evans 
Harding Commissioner Harding 

Grand Mound Rochester 
Chamber 
 

Monthly 1st Wednesday at 12:00 
PM 

Commissioner Evans 
Harding Commissioner Sanders 

South Thurston Economic 
Development Initiative Monthly 3rd Friday 8 am Commissioner Iyall Commissioner Sanders 

Washington Public Ports 
Association Trustee 

Two Annual Meetings & As 
Needed 

Commissioner Evans 
Harding Chair 

JBLM Community 
Connector Scheduled As Needed Commissioner Iyall Commissioner Iyall 

 



1/17/2024

1

Community Committee Assignments
Camille St. Onge

Director of Strategic Initiatives and Commission Affairs
Jan. 22, 2024

Action/Other, Action Requested
 Adopt the 2024 community committee 

assignments.

 Creates a connection and leadership 
opportunities within our community. 

2

Today’s Presentation

1

2



1/17/2024

2

Review Committee Matrix 

 Alignment with districts.

 Continuity of assignments.

 Expertise or interest in topics.

3

Overview of Committees

Community Committees
 Experience Olympia and Beyond
 Transportation Policy Board
 Solid Waste Advisory Committee
 Tenino Chamber
 Economic Development Council
 Yelm Chamber
 Lacey Chamber
 Makers Space
 Thurston Regional Planning Council

 Capital Lake-Deschutes Estuary 
Executive Work Group
 Sea Level Rise Collaborative: 

Executive Committee
 Tumwater Chamber
 Grand Mound Rochester Chamber
 South Thurston Economic 

Development Initiative
 Washington Public Ports Association 

Trustee
 JBLM Community Connector

4

3

4



1/17/2024

3

Questions and Comments

“…I move to approve the 2024 Commission community 
committee assignments as presented.”

“…I move to approve the 2024 Commission community 
committee assignments with the following amendments.”

5

5



 

 
  

COVER MEMO 
Briefing Date/Time: Jan. 22, 2024 

Staff Contact/Title: Camille St. Onge, Director of Strategic Initiatives & 
Commission Affairs, 564-669-3100 

Subject:     Election of Officers 

Purpose:    ☐  Information Only     ☒   Decision Needed   

Background/Overview:  

The Commission elects officers at the first meeting of each year, for that calendar 
year.  The appointments are effective immediately and continue until the first meeting 
of the following year.  The appointments to be filled include Commission President, 
Commission Vice President, and Commission Secretary.   

As outlined in the Commission’s Rules Resolution, the President presides over all 
meetings, signs documents on behalf of the Commission, and meets with the 
Executive Director to review agendas.  The Vice President carries out the President’s 
duties during his/her absence, as needed. The Secretary ensures the minutes, motions, 
and resolutions adopted by the Commission are recorded. 

In 2023, the officers were as follows: 

Commission President – Commissioner, Amy Harding  

Commission Vice President – Commissioner, Joe Downing 

Commission Secretary – Commissioner, Bob Iyall 

Documents Attached:  

PowerPoint Presentation 



1/17/2024

1

Election of Officers
Camille St. Onge

Director of Strategic Initiatives and Commission Affairs
Jan. 22, 2024

Action/Other, Action Requested

 Effective immediately upon approved motion

 Positions to be filled:
• President – presides at meetings, signs documents, 

sets agendas with Executive Director, etc.

• Vice President – performs duties of President 
when he/she is absent or as assigned from time to 
time.

• Secretary – ensures recording of  minutes, motions 
and resolutions, are followed as adopted.

2

Today’s Presentation

1

2



1/17/2024

2

Questions & Comments

“I move to appoint the following Port of Olympia Commission

officers to serve during calendar year, 2024:
Commissioner as President;
Commissioner as Vice President; and
Commissioner as Secretary” 

Suggested Motion…

3

3



 

COVER MEMO 
Briefing Date/Time: Jan. 22, 2024 

Staff Contact/Title: Rudy Rudolph, Interim Executive Director 

                                         360.584-4126, rudyr@portolympia.com)  

Subject:     Commission Rules Resolution 2023-08 

Purpose:    ☐  Information Only     ☒   Decision Needed   

Background/Overview:  
At a previous Port Commission meeting, the proposed changes to the Commission Rules 
Resolution 2023-08 were discussed.  These proposed changes are related to the duties of the 
Commission Vice-President. 
 
Yellow indicates additional language. 
 
Article III:   
A. (ADD; line 5); meet with the vice president and the executive director to prepare and review agendas….  

B. (ADD;) The Vice President shall: Meet with the president and the executive director to prepare and review 
agendas.  During the absence or disability….  

 

Article IV(C) Page 3, a purpose of work sessions  

1. (ADD Line 6) Scheduling of topics for particular work sessions will be agreed upon by the President, 
the Vice President, and the Executive Director……. 

(ADD) The President and Vice President will set the agenda for work session.  

 

Article V.  

1. (ADD) The President and vice president of the Commission and the Executive Director determine the 
placement  

Affected Parties:  
Commissioners

 
Sample Motion: 
 
Move to authorize the Interim Executive Director to make the above listed 
changes to Commission Rules Resolution 2023-08 and bring a new updated 
resolution back to the Port Commission for adoption/signatures. 

mailto:rudyr@portolympia.com


 

COVER MEMO 
Briefing Date/Time: Jan. 22, 2024 

Staff Contact/Title: Rudy Rudolph, Interim Executive Director 

                                         360.584-4126, rudyr@portolympia.com)  

Subject:     Interim Executive Director Performance/Compensation 

Purpose:    ☐  Information Only     ☒   Decision Needed   

 
Background/Overview:  
On January 8, 2024, the Port Commission held an Executive Session on Executive 
Director Performance. 
 
The actions requested from that meeting are listed below. 
 
Summary & Financial Impact:  
Funds budgeted for 2024 
 
Affected Parties:  
Interim Executive Director, Commissioners
 
Sample Motions: 
 
Move to approve 4% Cost of Living increase for the Interim Executive Director, 
effective January 1, 2024, consistent with other Port Staff. 
 
Move to authorize 80 hrs. of vacation leave cash-out for the Interim Executive 
Director effective immediately. 
 
Move to authorize four weeks of vacation for the Interim Executive Director prior to 
separation from Port service. 

mailto:rudyr@portolympia.com


 
 

COVER MEMO 
Briefing Date/Time: Jan. 22, 2024 

Staff Contact/Title: Shawn Gilbertson, Director of Environmental Planning 
and Programs 
360.528.8061, shawng@portolympia.com)  

Subject:     Chris Reive, Contract Amendment #2 

Purpose:    ☒  Information Only     ☐   Decision Needed   

 
Background/Overview:  
This is a proposed amendment to Chris Reive’s Personal Services Contract – No. 
2023-1010 – Budd Inlet Insurance Recovery. This contract was originally approved 
April 2023 for a Not to Exceed amount of $100,000. Amendment #1 was approved 
June 2023 with a revised Not to Exceed amount of $175,000. This second 
amendment to the contract will increase the Not to Exceed amount of $225,000, an 
increase of $50,000.  
 
This work was deemed critical for cost recovery on the Budd Inlet Remediation 
Project. The Port had several insurance carriers and policies throughout the 1990s and 
2000s which may still have a duty to defend the Port of Olympia in its efforts to 
investigate the nature and extent of the contamination in Budd Inlet, work that is 
currently underway.  
 
The work associated with this contract has proved tedious and detailed and has 
required more time and resources to complete. The additional budget is to allow the 
completion of insurance policy gathering and review process to determine which 
policies may provide an opportunity for cost recovery. After this phase of the 
insurance recovery work, Port staff will work with Port general council to determine 
next steps.  
 
Documents Attached:  
Original contract, Amendment #1, Draft Amendment #2, PowerPoint Presentation 
 
Financial Impact:  
Additional $50,000 expended from Budd Inlet Remediation 2024 Budget 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Approve Amendment #2 

mailto:shawng@portolympia.com


1/17/2024

1

Chris Reive, Contract Amendment #2
Shawn Gilbertson

Director of Environmental Planning and Programs
Jan. 22, 2024

3

Advisory only

 Contract amendment

 Budd Inlet insurance recovery strategy

Today’s Presentation

2

1

2



1/17/2024

2

3

Forensic investigation of insurance policies
• Evaluate previous settlements
• Identify additional Port coverage
• Assess third-party coverage

Purpose of Contract
Insurance Recovery

History of Contract
Request: Amend Contract to Add $50,000

4

Effective DateAmountContract History

April 11, 2023$100,000Initial Contract

June 29, 2023$75,000Amendment #1 increase

February 10, 2024$50,000Proposed Amendment #2 increase

$225,000New Total NTE

3

4



1/17/2024

3

5

Liability insurance
Additional PLPs

Port revenue and reserves

Grants and appropriations – state and federal

Borrow

Taxes

Budd Inlet Restoration
Funding Sources

6

Insurance Policies
Evidence of Policy Coverage
 Investigation timeframe

• 1997 – 2008 

 Not applicable

• 2008 - present

 Future investigation

• 1990 – 1996

5

6



1/17/2024

4

Questions and Comments

7

7































  P a g e  | 1 

PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 2023-1010 
AMENDMENT No. 1 

BUDD INLET INSURANCE RECOVERY 

Port Representative: Sam Gibboney 
Consultant/Firm: Christopher L. Reive, Counselor at Law and Mediation Services 
Consultant/Firm Representative:  Christopher L. Reive 

This Amendment No. 1 is made by and between the Port of Olympia, a Washington municipal 
corporation (the "Port") and Christopher L. Reive, Counselor at Law and Mediation Services, (the 
"Consultant"), and collectively sometimes referred to as “Parties” or individually as “Party” to the 
above referenced Agreement, which was previously executed by an authorized representative of 
both Parties. 

The Parties now desire to amend the Agreement as allowed through mutual written agreement.  
Specifically, the Parties hereby agree to the following changes: 

1. Section 4 – Compensation: The not to exceed amount is changed to a new not to exceed
amount of $175,000.00 for the entirety of the Agreement.

This Amendment constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the amended Sections 
listed and supersedes all prior negotiations and representations.  In the event any portion of the 
original Agreement conflicts with this, or any other amendment, the document most recently 
mutually executed shall take precedence.  

The Parties have read the above referenced Agreement, previous amendments, and this 
Amendment in its entirety and assert they have full authority to bind their respective party to 
these changes.  

Executed and Effective, as of the latter of dates of the mutual signatures below. 

THE PORT OF OLYMPIA CHRISTOPHER L. REIVE, COUNSELOR AT LAW 

Date Christopher L. Reive              Date Rudy Rudolph  
Acting Executive Director Authorized Representative 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 286BFE0E-BFD2-4084-B27A-9AF3A3A71C71



 
 
 

        P a g e  | 1  
   
 

PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 2024-10XX 
AMENDMENT No. 2 

BUDD INLET INSURANCE RECOVERY 
 
Port Representative: Shawn Gilbertson 
Consultant/Firm: Christopher L. Reive, Counselor at Law and Mediation Services 
Consultant/Firm Representative:  Christopher L. Reive 
 
This Amendment No. 2 is made by and between the Port of Olympia, a Washington municipal 
corporation (the "Port") and Christopher L. Reive, Counselor at Law and Mediation Services, (the 
"Consultant"), and collectively sometimes referred to as “Parties” or individually as “Party” to the 
above referenced Agreement, which was previously executed by an authorized representative of 
both Parties. 
 
The Parties now desire to amend the Agreement as allowed through mutual written agreement.  
Specifically, the Parties hereby agree to the following changes: 

1. Section 4 – Compensation: The not to exceed amount is changed to a new not to exceed 
amount of $225,000.00 for the entirety of the Agreement. 

This Amendment constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the amended Sections 
listed and supersedes all prior negotiations and representations.  In the event any portion of the 
original Agreement conflicts with this, or any other amendment, the document most recently 
mutually executed shall take precedence.  

The Parties have read the above referenced Agreement, previous amendments, and this 
Amendment in its entirety and assert they have full authority to bind their respective party to 
these changes.  

Executed and Effective, as of the latter of dates of the mutual signatures below. 

THE PORT OF OLYMPIA CHRISTOPHER L. REIVE, COUNSELOR AT LAW 
 
 
 
                
Rudy Rudolph   Date  Christopher L. Reive                                Date 
Interim Executive Director   Authorized Representative 


	01 - 1-22-2024 Commission Meeting Agenda WORD
	Commission Meeting
	Monday, Jan. 22, 2024

	02 - Cover Memo - CBC Bldg 2 Roof Replacement Final Acceptance (WORD)
	03 - CBC Bldg 2 Roof Replacement Change Order No. 1
	04 - Cover memo - Port_Tumwater HCP Intelocal Agreement Extension
	05 - City-Port ILA Habitat Conservation Plan Original Agreement_2016
	06 - City-Port ILA Habitat Conservation Plan First Amendment_2020
	07 - City-Port ILA Habitat Conservation Plan Second Amendment_2022
	08 - City-Port ILA Habitat Conservation Plan Third Amendment_2024
	10 - COVER-2024CommissionCommitteeAssignments
	11 - 2024DRAFT Commission Committee Assignments
	12 - 2024-CommitteeAssignments
	13 - 2024 Election of Officers Cover Memo
	14 - 2024Jan8-OfficerElections
	15 - Cover Memo RR Rules Resolution 1-22-24
	16 - Cover Memo ED Performance  1-22-24
	17 - Cover Memo Chris Reive Amendment 2 No. 2023-1010 1-22-24
	18 - Presentation Chris Reive Amendment 2 No. 2023-1010 1-22-24
	19 - Budd Inlet Insurance Recovery Executed Contract ends 12.31.2024 - original
	20 - 3_-_2023-1010_Budd_Inet Insurance recovery Chris Reive Amend #1 competed
	21 - 2024-10XX - Budd Inlet Insurance Recovery Christopher Reive Draft Amendment #2



